
 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 

 

ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 

 

                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

 

Board of Directors: Beverly Fickes - Chair,  

Terry Lincoln, Vice Chair  

Directors – Pam Beaver, Scott McVay, Logan Johnston 

 

General Manager:  Paul Kelley 

 

REGULAR MEETING: September 20th 2023 at 6:00PM: District Office Board Room 

 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER  

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

3. ROLL CALL 

 

4. OPEN TIME/PUBLIC COMMENT:  Pursuant to Gov. code S54950, persons wishing to address 

the Board of Directors on matters not listed on the agenda should notify the Secretary prior to the 

start of the meeting. To speak at this time and for any item listed on the agenda – raise your hand, 

and when recognized by the Chair – proceed to the podium to address the Board. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA (Action) 

The following items are expected to be routine. Any interested party may comment or request an item be 

removed from the consent agenda for separate discussion/action.  

a. Minutes from Meetings – Special Meeting 6/7/23. Regular meetings: 07/21/23, 8/30/23  

b. Paid Bills: 8/15/23 – 9/14/23 

c. Payroll: 8-17-23, 8-31-23  

d. Activity Report: August 2023 
 

6. OLD BUSINESS/NEW BUSINESS (Discussion/Action) 

a. O.B. - USBR Account Reconciliation (Discussion) 

b. Appointments to District Committees (Discussion/Action) 

c. Audit Report and Auditor Planning Letter – OPEB GASB 75 – (Discussion) 

d. Customer Protest of Base Rate - (Discussion/Action) 

e. Water Usage & Revenue & Rate Ordinance Review – (Discussion)  

f. Grants Update – (Discussion) 

 

 

 



 

 

 

ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 

 

                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

7. GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT 

 

8. OPERATIONS REPORT 

 

9.  STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT –  

a. Agriculture – 

b. Finance – Report on Sept 12th 

c. Planning/Steering –  

 

10.  BOARD MEMBER ITEMS 

 

11. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENT:  

The Board will adjourn to Closed Session to discuss the following item: 

a. Public Employee, to consider performance evaluation of General Manager 

pursuant to GC §54957(b)(1), 

 

 

12.  ADJOURN THE MEETING 

 
 

 



5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 
Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 

MEMO 

Date: September 20th 2023 

To: Board of Directors 

From: General Manager – Paul Kelley 

Re: 5 – Consent Agenda (Action) 

Discussion: 

5.a – Minutes of The Special Meeting 6/7/23 – Verbatim. (The other full meeting minutes still in progress)

-- The Board changed the minutes type to “action” minutes and keeping audio recording for 7 years. 

Minutes – Regular Meeting – July 21st 2023 

- Regular Meeting – August 16th 2023, Rescheduled for August 30th 2023

5.b – List of bills paid – from QuickBooks 8/15/23 – 9/14/23

5.c – Payroll since last meeting: 8-17-23, 8-31-23

5.d – Activity report – August 2023

Recommendation: 

Review, Discussion and by Motion approve items 5.a through 5.d 



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

  
Board of Directors: Beverly Fickes - Chair,  

Terry Lincoln, Vice Chair  
Directors – Pam Beaver, Irwin Fust, Scott McVay 

 
General Manager:  Paul Kelley 

 
SPECIAL MEETING June 7th 2023 at 6:00PM: District Office Board Room 

 
 

MINUTES 

1. CALL TO ORDER- by Chair Fickes  
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE- led by Director McVay. 
 

3. ROLL CALL- Director Lincoln, Director McVay, Director Beaver, Chair Fickes, General 
Manager Paul Kelley, Administrative Assistant Kayla Faulks, and Bookkeeper Melissa 
Tenney. Absent was Director Fust. 
 

4. OPEN TIME/PUBLIC COMMENT:  None 
 

5. CONSENT – NONE 
 

6. OLD BUSINESS/NEW BUSINESS (Discussion/Action) 
 

a. Fiscal year 2023-24 Draft Budget (Discussion) 
i. General Manager Paul Kelley presented the 2023-24 draft budget that was updated since 

the last meeting with the Board Member’s recommended adjustments and fixes. He let 
the Board know that the budget to be considered and approved at a publicly published 
notice meeting that will be a public hearing. He mentioned that the plan is to schedule 
the public hearing for the June 21st meeting at 6:30pm. General Manager Paul Kelley 
explained that the payroll expenses were broken out by divisions and departments and 
an expense item for reserves was added. He added that in the past, the District did not 
show or track that element of things. He also proposed that with the actual budget 
spreadsheet itself also attaching some background information on the District and how 
the budget was put together. He said he planned to provide a draft of that to the board 
members and have them review and make edits as necessary. General Manager Paul 
Kelley added that at the next prop 218 process the customer accounts getting charged 



 
 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

the base rate will need to be visited. Currently there are 2,577 accounts getting charged 
the base rate and 122 that have meters that are locked who are not being charged the 
base rate. He explained that just because the customer’s meters are locked the 
expenses and treatment to provide that service did not go away. He mentioned that all 
accounts should be billed at that base rate regardless of if the meter is locked or not. 
And added that this is something that will need to be looked at during the next Prop 
218 process. General Manager Paul Kelley explained why the $10.81 fees are broken 
out separately in the revenue section of the budget. He said that it is because those 
items are designated revenue. And those items are identified again later in the budget 
because they are expensed to reserves. He explained that you should always have a 
little bit more revenue than expenses to put in your fund balance as a projected fund 
balance. This can be used for mid-year budget adjustments to offset costs for things that 
are possibly more than anticipated. There was some discussion regarding the WIIN 
ACT payments and agreement with the Bureau. General Manager Paul Kelley explained 
that with the current budget the $1.88 that gets collected from customers payments 
will be put into a reserve account. He also mentioned that back in March the Board 
purchased 500af from the McConnell Foundation and wanted to use penalties to help 
pay for that cost. He suggested that at the end of this fiscal year the District is going to 
put those penalties into a reserve account to help with the future costs of water that 
the District may have to buy if we are to go back into a drought. General Manager Paul 
Kelley stated that in the budget there was a line item named “discretionary fund balance 
reserve” that would be used to roll over from a previous year or budget. He then 
moved on to explain the Treatment expenses. He mentioned that PG&E are increasing 
their rates about 17% so the estimate for utilities is $75,000. General Manager explained 
the capital improvement expense item to track expenses supporting the grant funded 
backwash ponds and electrical SCADA repair that would potentially get reimbursed. 
He explained that this will be tracked in all divisions as work for these grant funded 
projects needs to be tracked by division. He explained that he added a payroll tracking 
item for USAs which stands for Utility Service Alignments. The District gets a lot of 
requests from PG&E, MGE and other utility companies to mark lines near the area they 
need to dig. He wanted to make sure that is tracked going forward as it takes a lot of 
the staff’s time lately. He explained that a line item for inventories had been added as 
well. He explained that previously the inventory was lumped into the repairs and 
maintenance before and now it will be tracked separately. General Manager Paul Kelley 
let the Board know that the Distribution Utilities line item needs to stay at $60,000 
because of PG&E’s standby costs. Director McVay asked if there was any way we could 
use our status as a disadvantaged district to get a better rate from them. General 
Manager Paul Kelley said he was not sure, but he would look into it. He then moved on 
to the Administrative section of the budget. He explained that utilities were severely 
underestimated on the previous budget and for the new budget he based it off of the 



 
 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

actuals that we have been spending over the last 10 months. He also explained the 
higher estimate for membership expenses. The ACWA JPIA membership was previously 
underestimated. And for this years budget he wanted to make sure that it was as close 
as possible. The Auto Liability and Worker’s Comp is probably more than $16,000 of 
the budgeted amount. He suggested that the District consider joining the California 
Rural Water Association as they have some great resources. General Manager Paul 
Kelley explained that in the past the Director elections have not been accounted for 
and that is something we need to account for in this budget as the District paid $7,000 
previously. He suggested it be in next year’s budget. He mentioned he allocated some 
money to the IT subscriptions and computer maintenance. General Manager Paul Kelley 
stated that he budgeted a little more for the legal expenses as we will need to work a 
little more with legal due to the grants. He added that employee benefits are going to 
be accounted for in this budget. The OPEB reporting is done every odd year so the 
costs for that is identified in the budget. He mentioned that the District contribution 
for CalPERS retirement is going up to 7.68% and the employee contributions are going 
up to 7.75% beginning July 1st. Chair Fickes asked where the uniform services were 
accounted for in the budget if not in the employee benefits like the boot allowance. 
Bookkeeper Accountant Melissa Tenney responded saying in safety equipment and gear. 
General Manager went on to explain that customer accounts in now under the 
administration section. This captured the envelopes, postage, and printing expenses of 
the billing process. He explained that under the payroll expenses it is broken out by 
division. The expensed amounts for payroll is including the estimated 4% COLA increase 
based on the CPI that the MOU states. He switched back to the customer accounts 
section to explain that it is pretty clear we have been collecting about 80% of customers' 
bills amounts each month. So he mentioned that he budgeted for the Account Clerk 
position to move to full-time to have time to work on getting that collection percentage 
up to 85-90%. Director Beaver asked for clarification of the General Manager’s synopsis 
as it states that out of the 4 days that would be added a month to the Account Clerk’s 
schedule only 3 would be devoted to delinquent accounts. General Manager Paul Kelley 
said it was a typo that the Account Clerk would be devoting all 4 days to customer 
accounts and collections, but it hasn’t really been drawn out what days each week will 
be devoted specifically to delinquent accounts and that is something that will be worked 
on and discussed should the board approve this. Chair Fickes explained that the Board 
just needs some assurance that if the position were to go full-time we need to make 
sure that there is time for the Account Clerk to actually work on the delinquent 
accounts as it is known for the staff to get busy and then it might not get done. General 
Manager Paul Kelley stated that the Account Clerk’s job description would be updated 
to ensure that is part of the job duties and time will be allocated for this task. General 
Manager Paul Kelley then moved on to talk about the designated revenue section and 
building reserves. He mentioned that the rate rationale that was passed in August of 



 
 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

2021 stated that 4.1% of the usage rate collected would go into reserves to build the 
reserves account back up. He suggested that the District start doing so. In the Rate 
Rationale it also stated that 1.8% of the base rates collected is also supposed to go into 
an operating reserve. This district has not done that since September of 2021 and he 
suggested that we start doing that. And something we will need to catch up on. General 
Manager Paul Kelley said he had found an Emergency USBR Reserve and confirmed that 
is valid and it is for the conduit. He also mentioned that the Bookkeeper Accountant 
has found a CD that doesn’t show up on any of the charts, but it has $36,000 for the 
USBR Emergency Reserve. General Manager Paul Kelley suggested that we take that 
money and put it in the emergency fund. And lastly he mentioned that the budget had 
$7,500 more revenue than expenses and he explained that putting that into a 
discretionary fund balance that gets carried over to the next year to zero out and 
balance the budget. General Manager Paul Kelley ended his explanatory summary of the 
budget and opened it up to the Board for questions and comments. 

ii. Chair Fickes asked Director Lincoln to start with his questions and comments. Director 
Lincoln mentioned that he would like to see under the capital improvement line items 
memo that it not say “and other projects” as it seemed like a slush fund. General 
Manager Paul Kelley stated that the wording could be removed and mentioned that it 
is highly likely that what is listed under capital improvements is all that is going to get 
done this year anyways. Director Lincoln also asked that the mention of each 
department’s salaries be removed from the department sections of the General 
Manager’s explanation that will go with the budget because salaries are not identified in 
those sections of the budget rather there is a separate section of the budget that has 
the salaries broken out. He said it was just confusing because it seemed like the salaries 
were accounted for in two spots. Generel Manager Paul Kelley agreed and said that was 
a mistake and he would make the edits. Since yes, the salaries were in their own section 
of the budget and didn’t need to be talked about in the divisions. Director Lincoln also 
suggested that it would be easier to find the justifications in the memo if in the memo 
it included the account numbers from the budget. Chair Fickes then asked Director 
McVay if he had anything he had questions or comments about. Director McVay 
explained that he felt this was a very workable budget and would like to review it 
quarterly or semiannually to make any adjustments. The only question he had was since 
the expenses and revenue was zeroing out, was there some way of putting the 
McConnell's actual that is going to be paid out this fiscal year and removing that from 
the budget. So, whatever it paid out this fiscal year be expensed out. General Manager 
Paul Kelley said he would be hesitant to do that until we do a quarterly budget 
adjustment. Director Beaver asked about the safety and equipment for the Water 
Treatment Plant whether that included boots and other safety things needed specifically 
for the Water Treatment Plant. General Manager Paul Kelley stated that there are some 
specific add-on items that are needed up there. They do have some areas that are 



 
 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

confined spaces so there are training courses specific to that. Also, masks and other 
stuff that are supposed to be tested regularly. So that is why there is a specific budget 
item for this. Director Beaver then asked if the boot allowance and food allowance was 
in the employee benefits section then why wasn’t the uniform service put under 
employee benefits. She also asked what the uniform service all paid for because the 
board thought it was only the cleaning of the pants not the rental of pants too. General 
Manager Paul Kelley answered that he understands the uniform service is an issue for 
the Board and we are looking into proposals from other companies to see if we can get 
a better price and service. He also clarified that the cleaning of the pants is also the 
supply of the pants as well. General Manager Paul Kelley stated that he would work 
with the Bookkeeper Accountant to break out the uniform service from safety and 
equipment. Director Beaver then asked about the building and maintenance section and 
what makes up that expense item. General Manager Paul Kelley answered that is was 
the exterminator, bay alarm, and waste management. He also mentioned that we had 
to get the septic tank for the office pumped so that expense was also categorized in 
that expense line. There is potential to do some other grounds maintenance such as 
sealing the cracks in the driveway, and clean up of the trees and bushes. Chair Fickes 
wanted to clarify some of her comments and questions. She mentioned that the payroll 
was all based on step 4 wages, even though not all employees are at that step. She also 
mentioned that the water sales decreased from $650,000 to $408,000 due to the drop 
in the usage rate by $0.20. General Manager Paul Kelley mentioned that by dropping 
the usage rate it will be charging our customers more accurately. Chair Fickes then 
mentioned that she felt insurance for the District Vehicles and Buildings were high. 
Director Beaver asked if anything was found showing that the dump truck was paid for. 
Bookkeeper Accountant Melissa stated that she did not find anything in the books for 
the amount of $78,000 as Sandy Winters had mentioned at the previous meeting. Chair 
Fickes then opened the time up to the public for questions or comments. Community 
Member Kaitlyn Patrick asked if there was the possibility to include an appendix with 
explanation of what is categorized in each account. She gave an example of the grounds 
maintenance section. General Manager Paul Kelley said that the plan is to have a 
background summary that explains the budget and what those accounts are made up 
of. Chair Fickes then closes out this item on the agenda stating it was just a discussion 
item and the final draft of the budget will be brought to the board for approval during 
a public hearing at the next meeting. 

 

b. Ordinance 2023-08 – Water Usage Rates Ordinance (Discussion/Action) 
i. General Manager Paul Kelley explained that now that we have a little more accurate 

estimate of the cost particularly the utilities and O&M costs, the irrigation usage rate 
dropped to $0.51 per HCF and domestic water usage rate dropped to $0.52 per HCF. 



 
 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

He said that when the rates were approved in March they thought they were still at a 
stage 2, but since the Bureau bumped the allocations up they were able to get a better 
analysis of the costs and rates so he strongly urged the Board to approve the new rates. 
He mentioned that the District’s council advised that the rates go into effect 30-days 
from the approval date. Chair Fickes said she had an argument to that and asked if we 
were not in compliance with the current rates then why couldn’t the changes be 
effective now because essentially the customers are currently being overcharged. 
General Manager Paul Kelley said he didn’t think we were in violation of anything 
currently as the current rates were approved during the prop 218 because they passed 
an ordinance approving those rates. He added that if the Board approves the new rates 
and directed him to implement them immediately, then he would do so. Community 
Member Dennis Posehn commented that if the new rates couldn’t be implemented 
immediately then they should put the extra money should be put away and back into 
infrastructure. Chair Fickes asked to do the calculation to see what that amount would 
be should they have to wait the 30-days to implement the new rates. Director McVay 
said it would be a total of $15,000. Director Lincoln commented that he could see if 
we were raising the rates we would have to give 30-day notice, but if we are reducing 
then why couldn’t it be implemented right away. General Manager Paul Kelley stated 
that we are currently operating under a previously approved ordinance that has a rate 
that is legit and legal. He added that if approved then he would implement it whenever 
the board tells him to.  

Director Lincoln made a motion to approve the ordinance with the new rates that will go into 
effect at the time of the vote. Director Beaver 2nd the motion. Motion carreid with a 4-0 vote. 

 
7.  ADJOURN THE MEETING- 7:46 PM 

 



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

 
Board of Directors: Beverly Fickes - Chair,  

Terry Lincoln, Vice Chair  
Directors – Pam Beaver, Scott McVay, Vacant 

 
General Manager:  Paul Kelley 

 
REGULAR MEETING: July 19th 2023 at 6:00PM: District Office Board Room 

 

MINUTES 
1. CALL TO ORDER – Chair Fickes called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Pledge was led by Director Beaver 

 
3. ROLL CALL – Chair Fickes called the Roll: 

 
Present: Chair Fickes, Vice-Chair Lincoln, Directors Beaver and McVay 
Staff: General Manager Paul Kelley, Administrative Assistant Kayla Faulks 
Members of Public – Jackie Longcrier, Sandy Winters, Steve Allen the UPEC Representative 

 
4. OPEN TIME/PUBLIC COMMENT:   

Speaker: Sandy Winters – Reminding all about Firewise and Meeting every 4th Thursday 
 Steve Allan – UPEC President, Rep for Employee union – Read letter to board into the record 
(attached) 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA (Action) 
The following items are expected to be routine. Any interested party may comment or request an item be 
removed from the consent agenda for separate discussion/action.  

a. Minutes from Regular Meeting: 4-19-23, 5-17-23  
b. Paid Bills: 6/12/23 – 7/14/23 
c. Payroll: 6-22-23, 7-6-23  
d. Activity Reports: June 2023 Held for next meeting 

 
Board Discussed, asked questions and mentioned the documents presented as back up to some of the expenses.  
Suggested edits to minutes taken. 
Motion to approve Consent as amended (minutes) – McVay, 2nd – Beaver 
 Passed unanimously (4-0) 

 
 



 
 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

6. OLD BUSINESS/NEW BUSINESS (Discussion/Action) 
a. O.B. - USBR Account Reconciliation (Discussion) 

GM Kelley provided update from memo – nothing more to report 
 

b. Shasta County Grand Jury Report on CCCSD Response Letter (Discussion/Action)  
GM Kelley reviewed the Memo, Board provided comments,  
Public Comment: Emily Rankin made a comment 
Motion to Approve Letter, Authorize Chair Signature and submit to grand jury: McVay, 
2nd: Lincoln. 
Passed Unanimously (4-0) 
 

c. Accept Director Irwin Fust Resignation, Public Notice of Vacancy and Open applications for 
Vacant Directors seat. 
GM Kelley reviewed the Memo 
The Board provided comments, and suggested the materials be posted on bulletins and on website. 
Public Comment: Sandy Winters – Director Fust was a good member of the board and worked hard 
as board member and for the community. 
Motion to accept resignation, post the public notice and open applications: Beaver, 
2nd: McVay 
Passed Unanimously (4-0) 
 

d. New Customer Billing Software agreement - CUSI (Discussion/Action) 
GM Kelley reviewed the Memo, Admin Assistant Faulks provided more information and reviewed the 
memo. 
Board asked questions and made comments. 
Public Comment: Emily Rankin commented on this item. 
Motion to authorize GM Signature on the Software sales agreement: McVay, 2nd: 
Beaver 
Passed Unanimously (4-0) 
 

e. Committee Assignments – (Discussion/Action) 
GM Kelley reviewed the memo and advised new committee assignments with a vacancy on the board.  
The board could appoint a member to fill vacancies on the standing committees. 
Board discussed, and suggested that Director Beaver take the vacant position on the planning and 
steering committee.  Keep other vacancies open till new director. 
Public Comment: none 
Motion to approve Director Beaver on Planning and Steering Committee: Lincoln, 2nd: 
McVay  
Passed Unanimously (4-0) 
 



 
 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

f. Administrative Policy – (Discussion/Action) 
GM Kelley reviewed the memo, that described some items that need board direction. 
Board discussed and provided direction on the items listed: 

- Draft language to include community members on standing committees 
- Draft language for ad-hoc committees – now that Personnel doesn’t need to be a 

standing committee, but could be created/named as needed 
- Have special meetings of committees as needed or requested by committee 
- Minutes – Do action minutes, and keep recordings for 7 years. 
- Work on an updated procurement policy, separate from admin, but at some point as the 

“District Policy” manual 

Public Comment: Emily Rankin – Volunteer working on the policies asked questions and made 
comments to help get a clear picture of what is needed. 

 Kaitlyn Patrick : Liked idea of having community on committees. 

Action: Board – Provided direction for the Administrative policy to be brought back for board 
consideration. 

g. LAFCO Special District Member Vacancy and Nomination – (Discussion/Action) 
GM Kelley referred to the memo that with Director Fust’s resignation, it also created a vacancy on 
LAFCO.  LAFCO is calling for Nominations, due end of August. 
The Board reviewed and made comments. 
Public Comment: None 
No – Action 
 

7. GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT 
GM Kelley referred to the written report in packet. 
And mentioned that the District has signed an agreement with Cintas to replace Aramark, and is proceeding with 
Paychex for payroll processing.  He also updated the Board on information in the memo related to the three primary 
grant projects – including that the first reimbursement has been submitted to the state on the backwash ponds 
project. 
Public Comment: none 

8. OPERATIONS REPORT 
GM Kelley referred to the memo. 
Emphasis on the Delinquent accounts and the work done by Account Clerk starting to pursue delinquent accounts – 
with thousands brought in. 
Emphasis on Admin Assistant Faulks work to get LIWHAP working with the District and multiple accounts that have 
payment assistance needs. 
Board made comments and asked questions. 
Public Comment: none 
 
 
 



 
 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

9.  STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT –  
a. Finance- no items to report on. 
b. Personnel 
c. Agriculture – GM Kelley – noted that a meeting scheduled July 26th at 5pm 
d. Planning/Steering – GM Kelley noted more policy’s ready and a special meeting to be scheduled. 

 
10.  BOARD MEMBER ITEMS 

McVay reported that we did get some EAGSA funding in round 1. Licoln commented that the procurement policy is 
outdated and needed a whole new one 
 

11. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENT: - None This Meeting 
 

12.  ADJOURN THE MEETING – Chair Fickes Adjourned the meeting at 8:19PM  
 

 

 



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

 
Board of Directors: Beverly Fickes - Chair,  

Terry Lincoln, Vice Chair  
Directors – Pam Beaver, Scott McVay, Vacant 

 
General Manager:  Paul Kelley 

 
SPECIAL MEETING: August 30th 2023 at 6:00PM: District Office Board Room 

(August 16th 2023 Regular Meeting Canceled) 
 

MINUTES 

1. CALL TO ORDER – by Chair Fickes at 6:00 PM 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Led by Chair Fickes 
 

3. ROLL CALL – Chair Fickes called the roll: 
 
 Present: Chair Fickes, Director’s McVay and Beaver.  Vice-Chair Lincoln – Absent  
 Staff: GM Kelley, Bookkeeper Tenney 
 Public: 8 Members 
 

4. OPEN TIME/PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Sandy Winters – No Firewatch meeting in September, Farmers Market in Igo 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA (Action) 
The following items are expected to be routine. Any interested party may comment or request an item be 
removed from the consent agenda for separate discussion/action.  

a. Minutes from Meetings – June and July – In progress  
b. Paid Bills: 7/15/23 – 8/14/23 
c. Payroll: 7-20-23, 8-3-23  
d. Activity Reports: July 2023 

GM Kelley reviewed the items on the Consent – including the attached Bureau water charge sheet.  Explaining 
how the invoice pays for scheduled water a month from the date of invoice, records the past months actual 
(taking a credit or paying depending on the difference between scheduled and actual), and pays the actual 
previous month amounts for restoration charge and trinity PUD. 

The Board asked a few questions about bills paid and the activity report for July. 

Motion: To approve the Consent calendar – Director Beaver. 2nd: McVay 



 
 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

Vote: 3-0-1 

 

6. OLD BUSINESS/NEW BUSINESS (Discussion/Action) 
a. O.B. - USBR Account Reconciliation (Discussion) 

GM Kelley reported on this item, nothing new to report except that that Bureau had just sent the FY 
24 (effective October) CVP Restoration charge change – an increase by 8% 
 

b. Review Applications for vacant Director position / Appoint Director (Discussion/Action) 
The Board invited the Candidates to speak and then take questions from the Board. 
First: Chuck Dethero.  Introduced himself, discussed his history in the District and current work. 
 Board members asked questions and had a discussion with the Candidate. 
Second: Logan Johnston – Introduced himself, discussed history in district, education background and 
current work for Trinity Mills.  Introduced his wife to the audience. 
 Board members asked questions and had a discussion with the Candidate. 
The Board then had a discussion on the Candidates. 
 Motion to Appoint Logan Johnston – Director Beaver. 2nd – McVay 
 Passed: 3-0-1 
The Board took a break and Chair Fickes administered the Oath of office to Logan Johnston. 
 Signed the Affidavit and Logan took a seat on the Dias. 

c. LAFCO Special District Member Vacancy and Nomination – (Discussion/Action) 
GM Kelley reminded the board this was on their July agenda; the process is laid out on this document, 
and this was an opportunity for a district board member to ask the board to nominate them for a seat 
on LAFCO.  No board member was interested at this point in the LAFCO seat and will wait for the 
election process to play out. 

d. Policies for Adoption – By Ordinance / Motion (Discussion/Action) 
GM Kelley introduced the item – all these items have been reviewed by the board at the 

Special meeting August 9th and these needed ordinances to approve and each ordinance has a 
supersede of previous ordinances as well future policy revisions can be done by board without an 
ordinance. 

 
i. Board of Directors Compensation & Expense Reimbursement Policy – ORD 2023-10 

Chair Fickes pointed out a few edits and typos – fixed. 
 Motion to approve with edits and approve ORD 2023-10: Director Beaver, 2nd: 
McVay.  Passed 3 ayes, one absent, one Abstain: Johnston (3-0-1-1) 

ii. Employee Travel Guidelines and Reimbursement Policy ORD 2023-11 
Motion to approve Policy and approve ORD 2023-11: Director McVay, 

2nd: Beaver.  Passed 3 ayes, one absent, one Abstain: Johnston (3-0-1-1) 
 

iii. Surplus Property Disposal Policy ORD 2023-12 



 
 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

Motion to approve Policy and approve ORD 2023-12: Director Beaver, 
2nd: McVay.  Passed 3 ayes, one absent, one Abstain: Johnston (3-0-1-1) 

 
iv. Trespassers on CCCSD Property Policy Ord 2023-13 

Motion to approve Policy and approve ORD 2023-13: Director McVay, 
2nd: Beaver.  Passed 3 ayes, one absent, one Abstain: Johnston (3-0-1-1) 

 
v. Delinquencies & Service Disconnection (shut off) policy Ord 2023-14 

Motion to approve Policy and approve ORD 2023-14: Director Beaver, 
2nd: McVay.  Passed 3 ayes, one absent, one Abstain: Johnston (3-0-1-1) 

 
vi. Will Serve Letter Policy – by Motion 

Motion to approve The Will Serve Letter Policy: Director McVay, 2nd: Beaver.  
Passed 3 ayes, one absent, one Abstain: Johnston (3-0-1-1) 

 
e. Fiscal Year 2023 Activity (P&L Actuals) Report vs Budget (Discussion) 

GM Kelley introduced the item and reviewed the particulars pointing out some of the items and 
changes from the old Budget approved in August of 2022 for FY23.   
Directors asked questions – Bookkeeper Tenney and GM Kelley answered the questions. 
Discussion about impacts on reserves and future year. 
GM Kelley mentioned this is for information and will help prep for quarterly reports and budget 
adjustment meetings.  And that there will be a finance committee meeting on September 12th. 
 

f. Signer on Accounts/Check Signer (Discussion/Action) 
Discussion of the need for an additional account and check signer. 
 Motion for Director Pam Beaver to be account and check signer: by Chair 
Fickes, 2nd: Director McVay.  
 Vote – 4-0-1 (Fickes, Mcvay, Beaver, Johnston,) Absent: Lincoln 
 

7. GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT 
GM Kelley discussed some items in the written report.  Highlighted the Grant projects and the financing of those 
projects (cash flow and reimbursements).  Also highlighted that USBR sent a letter regarding updated Restoration 
charge. 
Directors asked questions and mentioned needs for CIP, Solar and other improvements for the District. 
 

8. OPERATIONS REPORT 
GM Kelley reviewed the written report. 
 Read the number of delinquent accounts from last month to contrast the numbers reduced in this report. 
 Mentioned the hard work by all office staff and in particular Shannan Perry – now full time – focused on 
Delinquent notices and shut offs. 



 
 

 
ADA Related Disabilities: 

Contact the front office and speak with a Staff Member if special consideration is needed to attend any public meeting for disability related accommodations or 

aide is needed. Please give 72 hours - notice prior to the meeting to allow staff to meet your requests appropriately. 
 
                                                   “This District is an Equal Opportunity Provider” 

  

 

 Reported the great news about full time person paying off – the recent shut off / delinquent notice process 
brought in over $100,000 to the District.  Approximately $70,000 of that from individual customers and 
approximately $30,000 for LIHWAP!! 
 The partnership to help those who are in need has been very successful and satisfying. 

9.  STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT –  
a. Finance – Announced that a meeting to be held 9/12/23. 
b. Agriculture – Report on 7/26/23 Meeting – Director McVay mentioned the discussion of a supplemental 

water program. 
c. Planning/Steering – Special Board meeting as committee on 8/9/23 - This would be committee to work on 

future CIP  
 

10.  BOARD MEMBER ITEMS – None 
 
Public members: Sandy Winters comment and Charles ??? – Comment 
 

11. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENT: - None This Meeting 
 

12.  ADJOURN THE MEETING – Meeting adjourned at 8:40pm 
 

 

 



Date Num Name Memo Amount Balance

Aug 15 - Sep 14, 23
08/16/2023 31313 Ability Answering & Pagin... 05-1-8495 -368.70 -368.70
08/16/2023 31314 Ace Hardware - Acct # 21... 2186 -10.38 -379.08
08/16/2023 31315 Apex Automotive, Inc. VOID: Unit 10 - transmission mount repair/ paid by credit card 0.00 -379.08
08/16/2023 31316 Aramark 110003939 -215.92 -595.00
08/16/2023 31317 Axner Excavating, Inc. 6920038 -999.57 -1,594.57
08/16/2023 31318 Beverly Fickes August Board Meeting -25.00 -1,619.57
08/16/2023 31319 CED (Consolidated Electr... KP-11984 -107.14 -1,726.71
08/16/2023 31320 Com-Pair Services 10117 -400.00 -2,126.71
08/16/2023 31321 Ferguson Waterworks 409921 -386.80 -2,513.51
08/16/2023 31322 I-5 Rentals Inc 175 -1,783.94 -4,297.45
08/16/2023 31323 McConnell Foundation -25,000.00 -29,297.45
08/16/2023 31324 Pace Analytical Services ... 20-100128 -347.11 -29,644.56
08/16/2023 31325 Pace Engineering Grant D2118158 - Well improv/Scada -13,150.00 -42,794.56
08/16/2023 31326 Patricia A Beaver August Board Meeting -25.00 -42,819.56
08/16/2023 31327 Scott McVay August Board Meeting -25.00 -42,844.56
08/16/2023 31328 Seth Allison Happy Valley Rd Repair meal -50.68 -42,895.24
08/16/2023 31329 Thatcher Company of Cal... 3001810 -6,212.46 -49,107.70
08/16/2023 31330 Underground Service Ale... 133391 -2,607.47 -51,715.17
08/16/2023 31331 US Bank Equipment Fina... 1453267 -346.81 -52,061.98
08/16/2023 31332 USBR - WIIN Act & Water WIIN Act Repayment August 2023 -50,000.00 -102,061.98
08/16/2023 31333 Valley Pacific C850335 -1,341.80 -103,403.78
08/16/2023 31334 Verizon 242343122-00001 -51.89 -103,455.67
08/16/2023 31335 Westside Aggregate 187 -2,435.04 -105,890.71
08/18/2023 31336 SWRCB - DW Operator ... -65.00 -105,955.71
08/29/2023 Ach 2704 Employment Developme... 932-0192-9 -63.99 -106,019.70
08/30/2023 Ach 1104 Guardian Group Id 00 527706 -1,866.45 -107,886.15
08/31/2023 ach 7755 RCAC-Loan Fund (Dump... VOID: 6332-CCCSD-01 / Rejected by RCAC receiving bank. Sending c... 0.00 -107,886.15
09/01/2023 ACH UNUM Life Insurance of ... -1,616.73 -109,502.88
09/01/2023 Ach 7738 Rick Cascarina Sept health Reimb -230.07 -109,732.95
09/01/2023 Ach 7739 Roger Schreiber Sept health Reimb - by ACH -137.84 -109,870.79
09/07/2023 31337 ACWA/JPIA C020 -1,105.00 -110,975.79
09/07/2023 31338 Agile Occupational Medic... Respritory physical - safety -555.00 -111,530.79
09/07/2023 31339 Apex Automotive, Inc. Dist - unit 1 -931.53 -112,462.32
09/07/2023 31340 Aveva Select CA CLEAR1 -3,645.00 -116,107.32
09/07/2023 31341 Bay Alarm Company 1201366 -158.32 -116,265.64
09/07/2023 31342 Beverly Fickes -100.00 -116,365.64
09/07/2023 31343 Brown Plumbing septic pump replacement -4,382.86 -120,748.50
09/07/2023 31344 Com-Pair Services 10117 -80.00 -120,828.50
09/07/2023 31345 Computer Logistics Corp -4,481.02 -125,309.52
09/07/2023 31346 Fasteners Inc 373 -3.20 -125,312.72
09/07/2023 31347 Ferguson Waterworks 409921 -4,160.13 -129,472.85
09/07/2023 31348 Foothill Fire Protection, Inc. extinguisher for backhoe replacement -53.63 -129,526.48
09/07/2023 31349 Gully Diesel Repair backhoe repair -140.00 -129,666.48
09/07/2023 31350 Harvest Printing Company customer billing -2,724.79 -132,391.27
09/07/2023 31351 Pace Analytical Services ... 20-100128 -347.12 -132,738.39
09/07/2023 31352 Pace Engineering -50,085.75 -182,824.14
09/07/2023 31353 Patricia A Beaver -100.00 -182,924.14
09/07/2023 31354 Peerless Building Mainte... floor strip and wax -925.00 -183,849.14

4:54 PM Clear Creek Community Services District
09/11/23 Custom Transaction Detail Report
Accrual Basis August 15 through September 14, 2023

Page 1



Date Num Name Memo Amount Balance

09/07/2023 31355 Professional Exterminato... 17387 -65.00 -183,914.14
09/07/2023 31356 Quadient Finance USA - ... 7900 0440 8060 6274 -195.00 -184,109.14
09/07/2023 31357 RCAC-Loan Fund (Dump... 6332-CCCSD-01 -1,696.07 -185,805.21
09/07/2023 31358 Regional Government Se... -3,819.75 -189,624.96
09/07/2023 31359 Rossie Electrical Controls... 400 -875.00 -190,499.96
09/07/2023 31360 Scott McVay -100.00 -190,599.96
09/07/2023 31361 Shannan Perry -65.50 -190,665.46
09/07/2023 31362 Shasta County - Air Quality -20.00 -190,685.46
09/07/2023 31363 Sunbelt Rentals, Inc. 948758 -797.64 -191,483.10
09/07/2023 31364 TDS 530-357-2121 -315.82 -191,798.92
09/07/2023 31365 United Public Employees ... -396.00 -192,194.92
09/07/2023 31366 Valley Pacific C850335 -1,750.14 -193,945.06
09/08/2023 31367 Reese, Smalley, Wisema... CLECR019335 -75.00 -194,020.06
09/08/2023 Ach 4561 Pacific Gas & Electric WTP -3,358.11 -197,378.17
09/08/2023 Ach 8371 Pacific Gas & Electric Clear Creek/Happy Valley -67.35 -197,445.52
09/08/2023 Ach 9051 Pacific Gas & Electric WTP - Pond -688.09 -198,133.61
09/08/2023 Ach 9691 Pacific Gas & Electric cloverdale/N. Booster -210.18 -198,343.79
09/08/2023 Ach 0211 Pacific Gas & Electric office outdoor lights -20.44 -198,364.23
09/08/2023 Ach 9720 Waste Management 3-99477-15008 -192.20 -198,556.43
09/08/2023 Ach 6k70 AT&T -2,033.23 -200,589.66
09/08/2023 Ach 6LHW AT&T -1,031.72 -201,621.38
09/08/2023 Ach 4297 First National Bank of O... 4418226482992665 -3,451.21 -205,072.59

Aug 15 - Sep 14, 23 -205,072.59 -205,072.59

4:54 PM Clear Creek Community Services District
09/11/23 Custom Transaction Detail Report
Accrual Basis August 15 through September 14, 2023

Page 2

















Aug 23

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

11000 ꞏ Revenue - Customer Accts
11005 ꞏ Base Rate Charge 190,921.00
11010 ꞏ Domestic Water Sales 66,774.69
11020 ꞏ Agricultural Water Sales 21,914.23
11050 ꞏ Penalty-Exceeded WA Allocation 10,687.73

Total 11000 ꞏ Revenue - Customer Accts 290,297.65

12000 ꞏ Revenue - Water Service
12010 ꞏ Turn On Fees 474.28
12015 ꞏ Centerville Admin O&M 17,182.03
12025 ꞏ Interest / Investment Income 58.07
12035 ꞏ Backflow Maint Charge 603.10
12100 ꞏ Misc. Revenue 878.97

Total 12000 ꞏ Revenue - Water Service 19,196.45

13000 ꞏ Designated Revenue -Non Op
13005 ꞏ Filter Plant Repayment Charge 27,824.17
13010 ꞏ Recycle Backwash Water Charge 1,988.90
13015 ꞏ State Loan Repayment Charge 4,167.34
13025 ꞏ WIIN Act Repayment Charge 7,206.78

Total 13000 ꞏ Designated Revenue -Non Op 41,187.19

Total Income 350,681.29

Gross Profit 350,681.29

Expense
29000 ꞏ Supply Cost

29005 ꞏ Water Purchase
29010 ꞏ USBR Water Purchased 12,147.56

Total 29005 ꞏ Water Purchase 12,147.56

29100 ꞏ WIIN Act Repayment Exp 50,000.00

Total 29000 ꞏ Supply Cost 62,147.56

30000 ꞏ Water Treatment Plant
30100 ꞏ Utilities

30105 ꞏ WTP - PGE 8185 3,358.11
30110 ꞏ Pond - PGE 3611 688.09
30115 ꞏ WTP - AT&T 2316 2,033.23
30125 ꞏ Internet 50.00

Total 30100 ꞏ Utilities 6,129.43

30140 ꞏ WTP Computer & Software 3,645.00
30150 ꞏ Safety Equipment & Training

30165 ꞏ Safety Training 555.00

Total 30150 ꞏ Safety Equipment & Training 555.00

30200 ꞏ WTP Repair & Maintenance O&M 120.72
30400 ꞏ Water Quality Analysis 218.41
30500 ꞏ Vehicle Maintenance & Expense

30505 ꞏ Fuel Expense 547.94
30525 ꞏ GM Truck Chev Colorado - Unit 9 309.14

Total 30500 ꞏ Vehicle Maintenance & Expense 857.08

Total 30000 ꞏ Water Treatment Plant 11,525.64

40000 ꞏ Distribution
40200 ꞏ Utilities

40205 ꞏ Cloverdale Rd N.Boost- PGE 4189 883.14
40210 ꞏ Clear Crk/HV - PGE 9574 147.74

2:10 PM Clear Creek Community Services District
09/15/23 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis August 2023

Page 1



Aug 23

40215 ꞏ No. Booster - AT&T 6708 1,031.72

Total 40200 ꞏ Utilities 2,062.60

40400 ꞏ Repair & Maintenance (O&M)
40430 ꞏ Inventory/Tools 169.64
40400 ꞏ Repair & Maintenance (O&M) - Other 10,672.99

Total 40400 ꞏ Repair & Maintenance (O&M) 10,842.63

40500 ꞏ Vehicle Maintenance & Expense
40505 ꞏ Fuel Expense 2,544.00
40510 ꞏ Ram PU 2019 - Unit 1 931.53
40535 ꞏ Chevy PU 2015 - Unit 10 2,311.71
40545 ꞏ Bobcat /Backhoe 140.00

Total 40500 ꞏ Vehicle Maintenance & Expense 5,927.24

Total 40000 ꞏ Distribution 18,832.47

41000 ꞏ Wells & Booster Station
41100 ꞏ Utilities

41105 ꞏ Wells 1 & 2 - PGE 2671 352.42
41110 ꞏ Well #3 - PGE 2838 237.29
41120 ꞏ So. Booster - Internet 30.00

Total 41100 ꞏ Utilities 619.71

41200 ꞏ Water Quality Analysis 962.83
41305 ꞏ Chemicals 6,212.46
41400 ꞏ Capital Improvements

41405 ꞏ Electrical Imp & SCADA D2118158 875.00

Total 41400 ꞏ Capital Improvements 875.00

Total 41000 ꞏ Wells & Booster Station 8,670.00

50000 ꞏ Adminstration/ General
50100 ꞏ Utilities

50105 ꞏ Oak St.- PGE 2838 1,837.04
50110 ꞏ 2 Outdoor Lights - PGE 3564 40.88
50120 ꞏ Verizon - On-call Cell Phone 51.89
50130 ꞏ Answering Service 368.70
50135 ꞏ Telephone - TDS 315.82
50140 ꞏ Internet 400.00

Total 50100 ꞏ Utilities 3,014.33

50200 ꞏ Office Supplies
50205 ꞏ Janitorial supplies 50.92
50200 ꞏ Office Supplies - Other 224.41

Total 50200 ꞏ Office Supplies 275.33

50315 ꞏ Postage 72.88
50320 ꞏ Meal and Reimbursments 192.78
50325 ꞏ Mileage/ Travel Reimbursement 65.50
50330 ꞏ Bank Service Fee/Finance Charge 899.40
50500 ꞏ Special & Professional Services

50510 ꞏ Director Fees 375.00
50515 ꞏ Server & Computer Maintenance

50517 ꞏ Software Subscriptions 971.72
50515 ꞏ Server & Computer Maintenance - Other 4,481.02

Total 50515 ꞏ Server & Computer Maintenance 5,452.74

50520 ꞏ Legal 550.00
50525 ꞏ Engineering

50525.1 ꞏ D2118158- Well Imp/SCADA Grant 13,150.00
50525.2 ꞏ D2202015 - Backwash Pond Grant 17,712.25

2:10 PM Clear Creek Community Services District
09/15/23 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis August 2023

Page 2



Aug 23

Total 50525 ꞏ Engineering 30,862.25

50535 ꞏ Building & Ground Maint.-Office
50536 ꞏ Waste Management 192.20
50535 ꞏ Building & Ground Maint.-Office - Other 4,606.18

Total 50535 ꞏ Building & Ground Maint.-Office 4,798.38

Total 50500 ꞏ Special & Professional Services 42,038.37

50700 ꞏ Regulatory
50900 ꞏ Testing & License Fees 65.00

Total 50700 ꞏ Regulatory 65.00

51400 ꞏ Employee Benefits
51405 ꞏ Guardian - Vision, Dental, Life 1,474.48
51415 ꞏ UNUM-Disability, Life, Accident 1,264.63
51435 ꞏ CalPERS Health Insurance Exp 20,667.10
51440 ꞏ CalPERS Retirement Contribution 9,651.54
51455 ꞏ Uniform Service 157.20

Total 51400 ꞏ Employee Benefits 33,214.95

51600 ꞏ Retiree Benefits
51605 ꞏ Retiree Health Benefit - Direct 367.91
51610 ꞏ CalPERS Health Ins- Retiree 7,984.10

Total 51600 ꞏ Retiree Benefits 8,352.01

53000 ꞏ Customer Accounts & Billing
53030 ꞏ Chargebacks, NSF, Acct Refunds 106.27
53000 ꞏ Customer Accounts & Billing - Other 2,724.79

Total 53000 ꞏ Customer Accounts & Billing 2,831.06

Total 50000 ꞏ Adminstration/ General 91,021.61

60000 ꞏ Payroll Expense -Salary & Wages
60100 ꞏ Payroll Exp - Administration/GM 17,299.51
60200 ꞏ Payroll Exp - Distribution 44,691.48
60300 ꞏ Payroll Exp - Water Treatment 24,565.43
60500 ꞏ Payroll Exp - Customer Accts 19,891.22
60000 ꞏ Payroll Expense -Salary & Wages - Other -1,734.89

Total 60000 ꞏ Payroll Expense -Salary & Wages 104,712.75

Total Expense 296,910.03

Net Ordinary Income 53,771.26

Net Income 53,771.26

2:10 PM Clear Creek Community Services District
09/15/23 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis August 2023

Page 3



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

 

 

 

MEMO 
 
Date:  September 20th 2023 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  General Manager – Paul Kelley 
 
Re:  6 - Old business/New Business (Discussion/Action) 
 
Discussion: 
 
6.a – The Bureau has nothing more to report on this issue.   
We did talk to the Bureau and the possibility that there may be the “water payments” near the end of the 
water year and how credits may be considered. 
 
The board reviewed and asked questions about the USBR account reconciliation. We continue to reach out 
to the Bureau on this and the WIIN act payments are processing. 
  
The Federal Fiscal year ends September 30th – so other reconciliations may occur. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, provide direction to GM. 
 
 
Discussion/Action: 
 
6.b – Appointments to District Committees (Discussion / Action) 
 
This item is for the board to appoint the new board member to District Committees. 
 
And discuss the process of putting District customers/volunteers on the committees. 
 
See item memo for more background and discussion. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, and by motion appoint Directors to Committees and provide Direction. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 

Discussion/Action: 
 
6.c – Auditor Report and Auditor Planning Letter and OPEB GASB 75 – (Discussion) 
 
For the Boards information. 
See the more detailed memo for the item. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, Provide comment and or Direction to GM 
 
 
 
Discussion/Action: 
 
6.d – Customer Protest of Base Rate – (Discussion / Action) 
 
Customer Gary Bagnaschi at 17599 Oly Way has submitted the attached letter. 
 
As can be seen in the letter – Customer Bagnaschi is requesting that his account no longer pay a second Base 
Rate for a previously rented house that he has turned water off to. 
 
The District practice and policy has been to charge the number of base rates on an account the equals the 
number of residents.  If a residence at a location is no longer used, the water needs to be disconnected.   
 
The customer reports the water is turned off.  The District has had customers in the past that have renters 
leave, and want the base rate removed.  The challenge is that house still is plumbed and connected to water 
and unless the shut off valve is locked, or the house is disconnected the District won’t know when the house 
is re-occupied and would need a base rate charged. 
 
Staff would recommend a letter suggesting either proof of disconnection or a shut off valve that can be locked 
by the District and only unlocked by the District when the customer wishes to use the house again. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, Provide Direction to Staff  
 
 
 
 
Discussion/Action: 
 
6.e – Water Usage & Revenue & Rate Ordinance Review (Discussion) 
 
Now that the District is 6 months into the 2023-24 water year, the General Manager is assembling 
information to review water loss in the system, where the loss is occurring, and the revenue impacts related 
to this activity. 
 
The primary way the GM is looking at this is from two directions.  One direction from the Treatment plant 
(as reported to the Bureau as water through the Treatment plant into the Conduit), Then North Booster 



 
 

 

 

Station Meters (a way to see about potential loss on the Conduit), then from the North Booster into system 
to customer meters.  The other direction is taking Customer payments (Revenue/Receipts) to calculate the 
Acre feet that represents, compared to what is Billed (projected revenue), and compare that to what enters 
the system at North Booster…. 
 
We also received the updated Bureau CVP reclamation charges (8%) that is effective October 1.  Based on 
plugging those numbers into the rate sheet calculations – it makes less than a penny impact and gets rounded 
to the current rates. 
 
See memo for more information 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, Provide input and Direction 
 
 
 
 
 
Discussion/Action: 
 
6.e – Grants Update 
 
This is to provide a current updated report to board on the current Grants with Funding agreements and 
pending funding agreements. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, Provide input and questions. 
 
 



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

 

 

 

MEMO 
 
Date:  September 20th 2023 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  General Manager – Paul Kelley 
 
Re:  6a – USBR Account Reconciliation 
 
Discussion: 
 
6.a – The Bureau has nothing more to report on this issue.   
We did talk to the Bureau and the possibility that there may be the “water payments” near the end of the 
water year and how credits may be considered. 
 
The board reviewed and asked questions about the USBR account reconciliation. We continue to reach out 
to the Bureau on this and the WIIN act payments are processing. 
  
The Federal Fiscal year ends September 30th – so other reconciliations may occur. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, provide direction to GM. 
 
 



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

 

 

 

MEMO 
 
Date:  September 20th 2023 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  General Manager – Paul Kelley 
 
Re:  6b – Appointments to District Committees (Discussion/Action) 
 
Discussion/Action: 
 
6.b – Appointments to District Committees (Discussion / Action) 
 
Board Filling Committees: 
This item is for the board to appoint the new board member to District Committees.  The Board by motion 
can approve appointments to the committees and fill the committees with current board members. 
 
 
Community Membership on Committees: 
When the Board adopted updated Administrative and General policies, they also approved an updated list of 
Committees: Agriculture, Finance, Planning and Steering. 
 
The Board also approved the inclusion of Community Members to the Committees, staff drafted the attached 
“Draft” application for community members interested in a committee. 
 
This is the opportunity for the Board to edit this draft and discuss the process of inviting applications and 
when the appointment would occur. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, and by motion appoint Directors to Committees and provide Direction on the 
Community Member application and process. 
 



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

 

 

 

Clear Creek CSD  
Board Member Committee Membership 

And Representative Assignments 
 

List as per Administrative Policy 2023 
 

Date: September 20 2023 
 

 
Committee:  Member   Member          Alternate 
 
Finance:      Scott McVay        Beverly Fickes     Pam Beaver  
 
Community: ________________  _________________ 
 
 
Agriculture:     Scott McVay           Vacant        Vacant 
 
Community: ________________  _________________ 
 
 
 
Planning/Steering:   Terry Lincoln         Vacant        Beverly Fickes 
 
Community: ________________  _________________ 
 
 
 
 
Assignments: 
 
JPIA:        Beverly Fickes   
 
EAGSA:       Scott McVay            Alternate      Vacant 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
5880 OAK STREET, ANDERSON, CALIFORNIA 96007 

www.clearcreekcsd.org 
 

 COMMITTEE APPLICATION 
For 

Community Members 
If you are interested in serving on the Clear Creek C.S.D. Committee and a customer in the 

District, please complete the application and return it to:  
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 or email: cccsd@clearcreekcsd.org 

 
Due Date: _______________  

 
The District Board of Directors through its Administrative General Policies has determined 
that Community representation on their Standing Committees would benefit the District and 
community.  Interested Community members are invited to apply for a committee and the 
Board will appoint community members for one year annually to their selected Committee.  
 
The three Clear Creek CSD Standing Committees available for community members: 
The Agriculture Committee, Finance Committee, and Planning and Steering Committee 
 
     Appointment will be made at: 

The Public Meeting is scheduled for ___ ____ ____ : 6PM. Attendance is required. 
 

COMMITTEE: Agriculture, Finance, Planning/Steering     DATE:__________________ 
 
NAME:____________________________________________________________________________ 
RESIDENCE: ADDRESS:____________________________________________________________ 
BUSINESS OR MAILING ADDRESS:__________________________________________________ 
PHONE (DAYTIME):________________________ PHONE (EVENING):______________________ 
 
EMAIL:_____________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Background: 

EDUCATION 

http://www.clearcreekcsd.org/


 
Institution Major Degree Year 

    
    

 
WORK/VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE 

Organization City Position Year-From/To 
    
    
    

 
STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS: 
Please briefly describe your qualifications and why you are interested in serving on a 
Committee of the Clear Creek CSD. 
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CERTIFICATION:  I certify that the information contained in this application is true and 
correct. I authorize the verification of the information in this application. 
 
_________________________________________                                                       ____________________ 
                Signature        Date 

 
Committee Descriptions 

 
The Board’s standing Agricultural Committee shall be concerned with promoting and 
preserving agricultural customers and assisting them with regulatory compliance, such as 
Annual Crop Reports. 
 
The Board’s standing Financial Committee shall be concerned with the financial 
management of the Clear Creek CSD including the preparation and oversight of an annual 
budget, and oversight of reserve accounts and major expenditures. 
 
The Board’s standing Planning and Steering Committee shall be concerned with the 
formulation of plans and policies for arranging, realizing, and/or achieving Clear Creek CSD 
goals. 



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

 

 

 

MEMO 
 
Date:  September 20th 2023 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  General Manager – Paul Kelley 
 
Re:  6c – Audit Report and Auditor Planning letter   (Discussion) 
 
Discussion/Action:  
 
6.c – Auditor Report and Auditor Planning Letter and OPEB GASB 75 – (Discussion) 
 
Audit and Auditor Planning Letter: 
 
The Districts Auditor – Horton McNulty & Saeteurn, LLP completed the FY21 audit in December of 2022, 
then started in April on FY 22 audit.  The Board confirmed the engagement letter (Signed in October of 2022) 
in March of 2023 and the auditor recently sent this attached letter and suggested that the board have an 
opportunity to review the letter – its similar to the previous “planning” later. 
 
The Auditor also informed the District Bookkeeper/Accounting that they have submitted the FY22 state 
controller report – in compliance with the Controllers request in March of 2023. 
 
The Auditor reports that they continue to work through difficulties of dealing with the old District accounting 
system (BUCS) and that Melissa is working hard to get all the information they have requested.  The FY22 
Audit is behind their original schedule, but they plan to finish by November. 
 
OPEB GASB 75: 
The District has MacLeod Watts under contract to accomplish the required GASB 75 actuarial reports.  
Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) is the RETIREE MEDICAL benefit the District provides it’s 
employees/retirees based on the adopted vesting schedule. 
 
Districts are required to have this report to identify long term liability of this benefit, and as required by GASB 
75 to be reported on the District financial statements for the fiscal year.  In this case FY 23. 
 
The District in 2011 set up a “trust fund” through CalPERS to help fund and deal with the long-term (30) 
liability identified.  The District also set up the current active employees to make a contribution from their 
payroll to the “actives” portion of the yearly liability. 
 
The new MOU calls for the District to work on alternatives for current and future active employees related 
to retiree medical. 
 
This report is for the Board of Directors information and discussion. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, Provide comment and or Direction to GM 

























































































 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

 

 

 

MEMO 
 
Date:  September 20th 2023 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  General Manager – Paul Kelley 
 
Re: 6d – Customer Protest of Base Rate – (Discussion/Action) 
 
 
Discussion/Action: 
 
 
6.d – Customer Protest of Base Rate – (Discussion / Action) 
 
Customer Gary Bagnaschi at 17599 Oly Way has submitted the attached letter. 
 
As can be seen in the letter – Customer Bagnaschi is requesting that his account no longer pay a second Base 
Rate for a previously rented house that he has turned water off to. 
 
The District practice and policy has been to charge the number of base rates on an account the equals the 
number of residents/buildings/houses/ADU’s.   
 
If a residence at a location is no longer used, the water needs to be disconnected.   
 
The customer reports the water is turned off.  The District has had customers in the past that have renters 
leave, and want the base rate removed.  The challenge is that the customer’s house is still plumbed and 
connected to water and unless the shut off valve is locked, or the house is disconnected the District won’t 
know when the house is re-occupied and would need a base rate charged. 
 
Staff would recommend a letter suggesting either proof of disconnection or a shut off valve that can be locked 
by the District and only unlocked by the District when the customer wishes to use the house again. (see 
attached draft for edit and consideration) 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, Provide Direction to Staff  
 
 





 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

9/24/2023 

Gary Bagnaschi 
17594 Oly Way 
Anderson, CA 96007 
 
RE: Response to Protest/Claim Submission submitted September 11, 2023.  
 
Dear Gary Bagnaschi, 
 

Your protest of the two (2) base rate charges to your account has been reviewed by staff and the 
Board of Director at its September 20th meeting as you requested. 

 
Based on your account and letter the property is confirmed there is one meter serving two 

structures/residences.  Your letter and report to staff is that one of the residences is no longer occupied, 
and you have an installed valve shut off to that residence. 

 
Your letter requests that the District discontinue charging the second base rate for the now un-

occupied second residence on the property.  The District policy is to charge a Base Rate per residence; 
this saves the cost of installing multiple meters but still captures the “cost of supplying” water to the 
additional residence.   

 
In the instance when a Customer has one residence and one meter, the meter can be locked if 

the residence is no longer occupied or in use.  If that residence is later occupied, the District would be 
notified to remove the lock, and could then re-activate the Base Rate.  Since many second 
units/houses/residences do not have the expensive second meter, to remove a Base Rate charge, the 
extra connection must be disconnected – not just “shut off by valve” to guarantee that the residence 
would not be “turned on” without the Districts knowledge and account getting that extra Base Rate 

 
For you to have the second Base Rate on your bill removed, this second connection would need 

to be disconnected and a picture supplied as proof. 
 

Please contact Kayla Faulks (Kayla.Faulks@clearcreekcsd.org) should you have any questions 
regarding this decision.  
 
Thank you, 

 
Paul Kelley, General Manager 



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

 

 

 

MEMO 
 
Date:  August 16th 2023 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  General Manager – Paul Kelley 
 
Re:  6e – Water Usage & Revenue & Rate Ordinance   (Discussion) 
 
Discussion/Action:  
 
6.e – Water Usage & Revenue & Rate Ordinance Review (Discussion) 
 
Now that the District is 6 months into the 2023-24 water year, the General Manager is assembling 
information to review water loss in the system, where the loss is occurring, and the revenue impacts related 
to this activity. 
 
The primary way the GM is looking at this is from two directions.  One direction from the Treatment plant 
(as reported to the Bureau as water through the Treatment plant into the Conduit), Then North Booster 
Station Meters (a way to see about potential loss on the Conduit), then from the North Booster into system 
to customer meters.  The other direction is taking Customer payments (Revenue/Receipts) to calculate the 
Acre feet that represents, compared to what is Billed (projected revenue), and compare that to what enters 
the system at North Booster…. 
 
We are working on this from March through August.  We are working to track the water from both ends of 
the system; from the Treatment plant through the North Booster to customer meters.  And then from the 
other direction, from customer payments (water usage revenue) to Customer water usage bills, to meter 
reads.  One real challenge is that FREYS software seems limited in reporting water usage, water billed, and 
payments posted to usage.  We are working on this – and today’s meeting is part of that discussion with the 
committee. 
 
Since the meter reads are usually around the 20th of the Month and the figures reported to the Bureau and on 
the Revenue are based on the first of the month through the end of the month.  Therefore, individual month 
review can have some skewed numbers and its best to look over a number of months where these numbers 
flow together. 
 
Example: July (recognize the above caveat of looking at only one month – for illustrative purposes) 
 M&I: The District reported to the Bureau 297 AF of M&I through the treatment plant (197AF Bureau 
water + 100 McConnell water).  

The Total revenue of $39,219.77 was received in July and that equals 173AF, and that is 123AF short 
of what we reported through the plant for M&I. 
 Irrigation/Ag: the District reported to the Bureau 116AF.   

Based on Ag usage revenue of $13,426.64 that equals 60AF.  Almost 56AF short,   
 
Combined look: The Total through the Treatment plant above is 413 AF.  Then the Meters at the 

North Booster report 374AF.  That’s a potential Conduit loss of 39AF.  (for context the full 6 months water 
loss is 35AF – so this amount in the Conduit for July is an anomaly).  The total “Customer Metered” or “Billed 



 
 

 

 

to the Customer” for July is 300AF.  That is 74Af less than what went through the North Booster and 113AF 
less than the treatment plant. 
 
 The GM wants to get a good handle on the Districts water usage revenue, and how water loss can be 
accounted for in reporting, rate setting and reporting.  There are different methods on water loss and if the 
District was an “urban” water supplier the rules for water loss and audits would be very challenging.   
 
The GM is working of a very busy spreadsheet to help quantify and show the above July month example and 
can provide this as time moves forward and the reporting and numbers get more refined. 
 
This is an ongoing process and exercise and is primarily a reporting and tracking issue that needs the Districts 
attention and for the boards consideration and input. Water loss in the system and or from leaks etc. is 
common and the District should be considering this during water usage scheduling and rate setting.   
 
For Board discussion and consideration. 
 
For the Rate Ordinance: 
We received the updated Bureau CVP reclamation charges (8%) that is effective October 1.  Based on 
plugging those numbers into the rate sheet calculations – it makes less than a penny impact and gets rounded 
to the current rates. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, Provide input and Direction 
 
 



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

 

 

 

MEMO 
 
Date:  September 20th 2023 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  General Manager – Paul Kelley 
 
Re:  6f – Grants Update (Discussion) 
 
Discussion/Action: 
 
6.f – Grants List: 
 

1. Emergency Electrical /SCADA Repairs – So. Booster and Wells  
Funding Agreement D2118158 – Total Funding $477,000 

 
The District requested funding during the Drought in 2022 grant monies to update the electrical panels, 
SCADA, meters and more for the Wells and South Booster station.  Currently the wells are not all 
monitored or controlled via SCADA and when water is needed only one well can be running at a time. 
 
The State approved the funds in April of 2022 and authorized the District to proceed.  The District was not in 
a position to proceed with the project without a draft funding agreement.  After Christmas of 2022 the State 
sent a draft funding agreement.  The board authorized the GM to sign the document and at agreement with 
PACE engineering to manage the grant, design the needed items, coordinate with electrician and suppliers and 
the District staff to accomplish the project. 
 
The State informed the District that these “Emergency” grant funds needed to be expedited and the project 
would need to be completed and funded by the end of 2023 (12/31/23). 
 
The State finally signed the July 26th 2023, three months after the District started with the PACE on the 
Design and list of needed instruments and products. 
 
Current Status: 

- PACE has designed the project and provided the list of needed materials (punch list) 
o A large vault is needed for the new flow meter and this was ordered early for supply 

issues/worries 
o The flow meters and other electrical have also been ordered and multiple PACE invoices paid 
o The first design called for radio towers to transmit information from the Wells to the So. 

Booster (where date will enter the SCADA system). 
 It was preferable to see if an old conduit in the area would work.  The Electrician 

found the alignment and District staff spent 2 weeks repairing and pulling Mandrels so 
that communication cable can be pulled. 

o PACEs is updating the design on the communications line 
o The coordination for construction and completion in October/November 

- The District with PACE submitted all reimbursable expenses early September 
o For expenses through July – The State returned this first attempt requesting more information 

and that information is being collected for re-submit. 



 
 

 

 

o The staff is still working on tracking the expenses as well as submitting for reimbursement 
timely. 

 
2. Backwash Ponds Repair Project 

State Funding Agreement D2202015   
FEMA: FEMA-4382-DR-CA Summer 2018 CA WildFires 
Cal OES ID: 089-91008 FEMA ID: 089-167C-00 
 
Project Cost Estimate:   $5,064,000 
State Grant/Project Funding amount:  $3,060,633 
Federal FEMA/CalOES funding amount:  $1,592,739 (FEMA) $410,628 
 
Description: 

 
The Project is for the benefit of the Recipient and has a Useful Life of at least 50 years. The funding under 
this Agreement shall be used to address the increased raw water turbidity, filtration capacity, and backwash 
frequency caused by the 2018 Carr Fire. The Project will substantially reduce, if not eliminate, uncontrolled 
percolation from the three (3) backwash recycle ponds into Clear Creek, enhance the ability to process 
backwash sludge, improve the resiliency of the facilities to respond to natural disasters impacting the water 
quality in Whiskeytown Lake, and repair damages to the supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) 
system 
 
The District applied for the in 2019, CalOES/FEMA approved a portion of the funding request initially in April 
2020.  The State also spent 2019 through 2022 reviewing and updating the request as the project progressed.  
The project also progressed to a “concrete” lining of the ponds – a significant improvement from the current 
lining.  CalOES/FEMA in early 2023 rejected the use of their funding for the concrete lining – because they 
considered it an “improvement” not a replacement needed by fire impacts.  They also informed the District 
that they still require an “environmental review” of the concrete lining.  That review is still pending. 
 
The State informed the District in early 2023 that the State’s portion of the project was ready for a funding 
agreement to be signed.  In April of 2023 the Funding agreement was signed and the District authorized PACE 
to get the Design to 90% level for bidding in the Fall. 
 
In June, the District submitted a letter to CalOES requesting an extension on the FEMA approved grant. This 
portion of the grant had an expiration in 2021, extended to 2022 and then extended to 2023 (June).  Based on 
this history the Federal portion only does 1 year extensions.  Even though this project has been approved by 
both the State and Federal agencies for a multi-year construction schedule.   
 
Current schedule: 
 2023 – Design and bid 
 2024 – Award Q1, Construction on Pond 3 
 2025 – Construction of Pond 2 and final 
 
Next Steps: 

- PACE has designed the project and provided the list of needed materials (punch list) 
o Staff and PACE met with multiple agencies over the past 3 months for input 
o PACE is planning to post the project for Bid in October 
o Bid award – by CCCSD Board December 

- The District has paid invoices through July and Submitted them for reimbursement 
- Financing the Construction phase – challenge that District and PACE working through. 

 



 
 

 

 

 
3. Distribution Pipe Replacement project. (Also: District System Improvement Project) 

State Funding Agreement: None Yet (Number: District number: 4510016- State Proj: 004P)  
 
Description: 

 
The District received a report by PACE in 2021 for a potential project that could be eligible for a State 
Drinking water revolving fund funding.  Since the District is a DAC, the funding could be 90% grant 10% loan. 
 
The general project elements include: Replace 6,000 feet of 10 inch AC pipe, 12 Section valves, replace water 
meter heads, new water meters, 12 new hydrants. 
 
Current Status: 

- The State representative on this project sent a request for information in April of 2023 
o They wanted water conservation plan, and other information. 

- The State also relayed that this project is still in a long process of evaluation prior to drafting a 
Funding agreement. 

 
4. ARPA County Funding 

Potential Funding for Clear Creek CSD: $260,000 
 
The County allocated a portion of their ARPA funds to water districts in Shasta County on a 
proportional basis.  In November/December of 2022 they requested Districts to submit what they 
would use money for and Clear Creek submitted a request to use all the funding to do a Water Meter 
automation project. 
 
Description: 
 

CCSD - Water Meter repair, Meter reading automation, water loss prevention, customer conservation 
support program  

Longer description – This program will update, repair, and will update or install automated meter reading 
devices on over 1700 district/customer meters (or over 70% of the District meters).  This will facilitate more 
accurate and timely meter reading for customer billing and use.  This program will also help the district and its 
customers with leak/water loss detection and help with the customer’s conservation efforts during droughts 
and other water years.  This program will also help with data transmission and security for customer billings 
and water use accounts.  The total estimated for this work would be approximately $290,770 and the this 
grant could pay for a significant portion of the automation project. 

Current Status: 
- Since January, the County has had multiple changes in project managers at the administrative office 

and there has been no movement on this grant until September 12th 2023. 
- The County just sent the documents for grant usage and the District will start the process of 

submitting the requested documents and receiving the funds and ordering the meters. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Review, Discussion, Informational Report 
 



District Form - Irrigation/M&I
Contract No. 14-06-200-489-A-P

Irrigation
 Water M&I Water

$0.00 $0.00

$22.77 $15.52
$13.04 $17.23
$0.00 $0.00

$3.92 $0.38
$39.73 $33.13

TBD

TBD

TBD

$12.02 $24.05

$0.15 $0.15

2

3

Conveyance

Section 202(3) Rate is applicable to a Qualified Recipient or to a 
Limited Recipient receiving irrigation water on or before 
October 1, 1981.
Section 205(a)(3) Rate is applicable to a Limited Recipient that did 
not receive irrigation water on or before October 1, 1981.

M&I FULL COST RATE

Interest Bearing
TOTAL COS RATE (Tier 1 Rate)

IRRIGATION FULL COST RATE (RRA)

Exhibit B
CLEAR CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

2023 Rates and Charges
(Per Acre-Foot)

Deficit Cost Component

COST-OF-SERVICE (COS) RATES
Capital Component
O&M Component

Water Marketing
Storage

CHARGES AND ASSESSMENTS                                                
(Payments in Addition to Rates)

P.L. 102-575 Surcharges (Restoration Fund Payments)2 

[Section 3407(d)(2)(A)]

Additional details of the rate components are available on the Internet at 
www.usbr.gov/mp/cvpwaterrates/ratebooks.

P.L. 106-377 Assessment (Trinity Public Utilities District)3 

[Appendix B, Section 203]

Recent Historic Use, as defined in the CVP M&I Water Shortage Policy, is 2,265 acre-feet.

The surcharges were determined pursuant to Title XXXIV of P.L. 102-575.  Restoration Fund 
surcharges under P.L. 102-575 are determined on a fiscal year basis (10/1-9/30).

The Trinity Public Utilities District Assessment is applicable to each acre-foot of water 
delivered from 3/1 - 2/29 and is adjusted annually.







 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

 

 

MEMO 
 
Date:  September 20th 2023 
To:  Board of Directors 
From:  General Manager Paul Kelley 
Re:  7 – General Manager Report 
 
Report: 
A quick activity report, more by the General Manager verbally at the meeting:  

Starting the week of August 21, 2023 

• The three / four dead trees in front of the District board room were removed by PGE contractor and 
the staff has started on clean up 

• I received multiple inquiries for a Fire Hydrant a Igo school and the District Supervisor hosted a 
meeting to review.  I also attended the Igo-Ono CSD meeting to inform them that it needs engineering 
and cost estimate and that all cost to be paid by the community, county or ? – not Clear Creek. 

• The Distribution Staff had some leaks to repair – another Olinda and Olive was almost a 24 hour job.  
Thanks to all for patience.. 

• The Board installed a new Board member!  Congrats to Logan and GM sent the last 3 months of 
activity reports to begin process of getting up to speed. 

• The Account Clerk and Admin Assistant have worked very hard on Shut offs/Delinquencies etc.   As 
reported this will help with revenue as well as honing the data base for conversion to CUSI. 

• The District implemented electronic payroll through Paychx – there are still some challenges getting 
time clocked in and attributed to correct locations and projects.  But staff is happy with direct deposit, 
and less paperwork and typed notes. 

• Staff continues to work on CUSI conversion for new customer billing software 
• Computer Logistics and Com-Pair worked on getting more internet speed to the District, and TDS 

supplied backup copper internet connection.  Then there was a county wide internet interruption in 
September, and we continue to wait for fiber.  

• Worked on the three grant projects: - Update on this meeting’s regular calendar. 
o See the List on Agenda item f. 

• The Policies were approved August 30th and they are to be put on web and collated. 
• The MOU requires a review of the District’s retiree medical program and I met with our actuarial to 

review options.  The staff met and the actuarial was provided an update. 
• Still working on the employee handbook. 
• Worked on the “water loss” project – as described in the agenda item on this.  Gathering information, 

and creating a spreadsheet to track and recognize these elements. 
• Met with Igo-Ono CSD and community. 
• Met with Customers related to water use by neighbors and meters and base rates. 
• Other/More – Verbal 



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

 

 

MEMO 
Date:  September 20th 2023 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Chief Plant Operator: Bill Palmaymesa & Distribution Field Supervisor: Roberto Chacon 
  General Manager Paul Kelley 
 
Re:  8 – Operation Report 
 
Administration 
Below is a snapshot of the aging report of customer accounts: 
 
There were 150 Accounts that are 90+ days delinquent totaling $73,336.09.   
There were 184 Accounts that are 60 Days delinquent totaling $12,297.68. 
There were 241 Accounts that are 30 Days delinquent totaling $21,375.54. 
 
Delinquency Progress: In total for the month of August, $102,552.18 was collected on 60+ day delinquent accounts. 
 
The CCCSD Office Staff would like to thank and commend the intake/outreach coordinators at Self-Help Home Improvement 
Project (SHHIP) who have been working quickly helping our customers prevent getting their water service shut off and 
approved for LIHWAP. They have been very helpful and easy to work with!  
 
 
WTP OPERATIONS - The WTP produced 581af; Clear Creek CSD used 387AF of SW in August.      (Palmaymesa)  
 
Well Water Production- 0 af in July.  McConnell – 200af 
 

• Staff has been busy with routine maintenance, monitoring and operation of the WTP.   Staff is 
preparing for a mandatory intake level change; set to take place the last week of September.   The 
discharge from Whiskeytown Dam to Clear Creek will be raised from 150cfs to 200cfs with the 
intention to cool the water to 55 degrees(F).   This action forces the WTP to abandon the upper-level 
intake and treat the water from the bottom of the lake.  This level is the least desirable for water 
quality and operations.  Staff will be busy monitoring rapidly changing water quality over the next 6 
months.   

• Staff has overhauled the chemical injection pump station-Complete with two new pumps(total of four) 
a new pedestal mount to make pump change out easier and new tubing and fittings.  All four pumps 
are now operational. 

• The Filter to Waste pond has been cleaned out for the second and last time this year.   
• Staff is busy with reviewing plans and specs for the Backwash Pond Repair Project.  PACE Engineering 

is planning to have this go out to bid sometime in October. 
 

DISTRIBUTION OPERATIONS REPORT - (Chacon) 
 

1- On 9/8/2023 the crew was working on a leak repair on Fuzzy Lane that broke around 12AM. 
And on 9/12/2023 the crew were called out to a 14” line break on corner of Olinda Rd & Olive 
St. The crew worked all through the night and all day 9/13/2023 to get this line repair and 
service restored for the affected customers. 



 
 

 

 

2- Crew has been doing more clean ups and getting close to have all the clean ups done as they 
keep coming up on repairs. 

3- Field Crew has been replacing some of the end points that are not working and will continue 
replacing them as time permits and repairs are been done. 

4- Water samples results are negative  
 



 
5880 Oak Street, Anderson, CA 96007 

Phone: (530) 357-2121 Fax: (530) 357-3723 
 

 

 

 

MEMO 
 
Date:  September 20th  2023 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  General Manager – Paul Kelley 
 
Re:  9 – Standing Committee Report 
 
Report: From members of the Committees listed: 
 
Note:  
 
9.a – Agriculture –  
 
9.b – Finance – Report on September 12th meeting 
 
9.c – Planning / Steering –  
 
 


	Regular Meeting Agenda_September 20th 2023
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 5 - Consent
	Special Meeting MINUTES_June 7th 2023.D1
	Regular Meeting_Minutes_July 19th 2023. D2
	Special Meeting Minutes_August 30th 2023.D1
	5.b Paid Bills 081523-091423
	5.b copier lease-1
	5.b locates
	5.b water purchase credit
	5.b wtp chlorine
	5.c aug payroll
	5.d 0823 P&L
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 6 Cover
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 6a
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 6b
	CCCSD Committee Assignment List 071923
	Appointment to District Committee Application For Community Member
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 6c
	Clear Creek planning letter 06.30.22 From Horton McNulty District Auditor rescan
	Clear Creek CSD Signed FYE 2023 GASB 75 Rpt rescan
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 6d
	Letter from Bagnaschi 17599 Oly Way Protesting Base Rate 091123
	Draft Letter Response to Protest- Gary Bagnaschi 092023
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 6e
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 6f
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 7 - GM Report
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 8 - OP Report
	CCCSD GM Memo For Board Item 9 - Committee reports
	Clear Creek CSD 2023 Water Rate Exhibit.pdf
	CCCSD




